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Rose Terrace is an L-shaped, 2%4-story, brick structure in the
Italianate style. The brick bonding is 5 courses of stretchers with a
Flemish bond at every 6th course. Brick quoins decorate the corners and
separate each of the facade's three bays. Double brick string courses
surround the building at the middle of each level and delineate segmental
arches over the window openings. The wooden lintels are carved with a
six~-pointed star surrounded by floral motifs. The hip roof is broken by
a gable in the facade's central bay. There are six handsome, tall
chimneys{four in the main block and two in the reaxr wing) with elabo-
rately corbelled ‘caps. Large, carved coupled brackets alternaté with

. raised-patterned brick panels in the main cornice. There are four small
- attic-windows -in the cornice level. Originally, the roof may have had

a belvedere; it appears in a c¢. 1915 photograph, but has since been
removed. creoond

The symmetrical 3-bay facade is dominated by the central bay which
is topped by a gable decorated with a rosette carving and a finial. On
the second floor is a 3-part bay window with carved panelling surrounding
the openings. The first-floor entrance porch is supported by slender,
half~fluted Tuscan columns with pellet molding in the capitals. Carved
coupled brackets alternate with raised panels in the porch frieze. The.
double, 2-panel front doors are flanked by 1/1 sidelights. In place of
the transom is a carved panel with a circular motif. The two wrought«
iron balconies on the second floor are 20th C. additions to an otherwise
original facade. '

The two side elevations, nearly as elaborate as the facade, also
feature quoins, string courses, coupled brackets and raised brick panels,
Research indicates that part of the rear wing(that shown in the south
elevation) is original to the house and not a later addition. The north
elevation, however, has been altered. Originally, an arcade on the
bascment and first-floor levels was open to the garden. The second-story
arcade was added later, and the c. 1915 photograph shows this as a 3-story
open porch. Sometime after this photo was taken, the arcade was enclosed
and some of the openings bricked up.

The small, 2~story, brick outbuilding known as "Little House" also
appears to be original, although it has been enlarged on the west side.
This structure has a wide-eaved gable roof supported by V-shaped brackets.
Each end gable has a crosspiece support with a pendant. Double brick
string courses surround the building and define segmental arches around
the openings. The alteration to "Little House" was done sensitively,
taking care to match the brickwork.

Interior: BRose Terrace's conversion to a college dormitory has
necessitated some interior changes, but most of the elaborately molded

(to continuation sheet #1)




[ SIGNIFICANCE

PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW

—PREHISTORIC  __ARCHEOLUGY-PREHISTORIC  __COMMUNITY PLANNING —LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE ~ _RELIGION

140061499 —_ARCHEQLOGY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATION —LAW —SCIENCE

. 1800-1599 _AGRICULTURE —_ ECONOMICS « __LITERATURE ' —SCULPTURE

_-1600-1699 XarcHITECTURE ' X EDUCATION . _MIUTARY ' —SOCIAZHUMANRITARIAN

—1700-1739 __ART —_ENGINEERING MUSIC ' __YHEATER

X1800-1899 . -COMMERCE —EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT — __PHILOSORHY —TRANSPORTATION

_-1900- —_COMMUNICATIONS - INDUSTRY —_POLITICS/GOVERNMENT X OTHER (SPECIEY)

_ANVENTION health

SPECIFIC DATES c. 1875 BUILDER/ARCHITECT Unk nown

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Rose Terrace, built c. . 1875 as.a residence for Holmes Erwin{also
Irwin), is significant for its association with Mary Baldwin College, .
but more for its ornate architecture and detailing. Rose Terrace has
the most elaborate brickwork and chimneys of any of Staunton's houses.
The workmanship, both in the masonry and carpentry, is of the highest
local quality, indicating that only the best craftsmen were employed
building it. Although the house has been used for four distinct pur-
poses, its exterior remains quite original in appearance.

The land on which it is built was formerly a part of Judge Lucas
P. Thompson's Hilltop estate. Rose Terrace was erected as a one-family
residence and remeined such until it was purchased in 1910 by W. S.
Whitmore and J. B. Catlett. During their period of ownership, from
1910 to 1919, the house was used as the Augusta Sanatorium. In 1919,
it was purchased by Mary Baldwin Seminary(now College). The name
Rose Terrace was applied sometime later, and the house was used as the
college president's home c. 1930, The college presently uses Rose
Terrace as a dormitory. A small, original ocutbuilding, known as "Little
House," also remains and is used as living quarters for students; the
original use of "Little House" is unknown.
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7. DESCRLPTION

4.paneY dootTs, door frames, baseboards and window frames remain, as does
most of the original pine flooring. The mantel in the first-floor front
parlor is quite simple, with fluted supports and an undecorated frieze;
it is probably a later addition. On the second floor, a small room in

the central bay contains a = simple corner mantel; it features a
green "marbleized ° finish and a cartouches over the round-hezded opening.

This room also has the bay window described in the facade. Fortunately,
most of the rooms in Rose Terrace have not been subdivided, thus

retaining the generous proportions and high ceilings of this gracious
house. :
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9. MAJOR BRIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

Watters, Mary. The History of Mary Baldwin College. Staunton: The
McClure Company, Inc., 1942,

6. REPRESENTATION TN EXISTING SURVEYS

(2) Virginia Historic Landmarks Commission Survey
1972 State
Virginia Historic Landmarks Commission
221 Governor Street
Richmond, Virginia 23219
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10, GEQGRAFHICAL DATA

Verbal Boundary Description - 150 North Market Street '
Legal Description - City Engineer's Map #343, 1958, Mary Baldwin College..
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Come_to Staunton. Staunton: The McClure Company, Inc., undated(c. 1912-
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Sanborn Insurance Maps. New York: Sanborn Map Company, 1886-1914, 1929,
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